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UNITED STATESDISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE Case No. CV 11-05316-R
COMMISSION,
o FINAL JUDGMENT ASTO
Plaintiff, DEFENDANT THOMASC.
TEKULVE, JR.
VS.

PETER L. JENSEN AND THOMAS
C. TEKULVE, JR.,

Defendants.

The Securities and Exchange Comnaas{*SEC”) having filed a Complaint
and Defendant Thomas TCekulve, Jr. (“Defendant’having entered a general
appearance; consented to the Court’sliction over Defendant and the subject
matter of this action; consented to entry of this Final Judgment without admitting g

denying the allegations of the Complaimtdept as to jurisdiction and except as
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otherwise provided herein in paragraph XWgived findings of fact and conclusions
of law; and waived any righ appeal from this Judgment:
I

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGEDAND DECREED that Defendant is
permanently restrained and enjoined fraiolating Section 17(a) of the Securities
Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) [15 U.S.8.77q(a)] in the offer or sale of any
security by the use of any means ornmstents of transportation or communication
in interstate commerce or by usetloé mails, directlyor indirectly:

(@) toemploy any device, sahe, or artifice to defraud;

(b)  to obtain money or property by means of any untrue statement of a
material fact or any omission of a tedal fact necessary in order to
make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which
they were made, not misleading; or

(c) toengage in anydnsaction, practice, or course of business which
operates or would operate aaud or deceit upon the purchaser.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUBED, AND DECREED that, as
provided in Federal Rule @ivil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also
binds the following who receive actualtroe of this Final Judgment by personal
service or otherwise: (a) Defendamafficers, agents, servants, employees, and
attorneys; and (b) other perss in active concert or ganpation with Defendant or
with anyone described in (a).

.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGEDAND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined fnolating, directly or indirectly, Section
10(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Excha&uyg [15 U.S.C. §
78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 promtgated thereunder [17 CHE.§ 240.10b-5], by using
any means or instrumentality of interstatanmerce, or of #hmails, or of any

facility of any national securities exchangeconnection with the purchase or sale of
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any security:

(@) toemploy any device, sahe, or artifice to defraud;

(b) to make any untrue statement ohaterial fact or to omit to state a
material fact necessary in order tokmdhe statements made, in the light
of the circumstances under which thegre made, not misleading; or

(c) to engage in any agtactice, or course diusiness which operates or
would operate as a frawd deceit upon any person.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUBED, AND DECREED that, as
provided in Federal Rule @ivil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also
binds the following who receive actualtroe of this Final Judgment by personal
service or otherwise: (a) Defendamafficers, agents, servants, employees, and
attorneys; and (b) other perss in active concert or ganpation with Defendant or
with anyone described in (a).

1.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGEDMAND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined fnolating, directly or indirectly, Section
13(a) of the Exchange Aft5 U.S.C. § 78t(a)], and Ras 12b-20, 13a-1 and 13a-13
thereunder [17 C.F.R. 88 240.12b-20, 28a&-1 and 240.13a31[15 U.S.C. §
78j(b)] and Rule 10b-5 promtgated thereunder [17 CHE.§ 240.10b-5], by filing
with the Commission required periodiguets that fail to include material
information necessary to makee required statements,light of the circumstances
under which they were rda, not misleading.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUBED, AND DECREED that, as
provided in Federal Rule @ivil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also
binds the following who receive actualtroe of this Final Judgment by personal
service or otherwise: (a) Defendamafficers, agents, servants, employees, and
attorneys; and (b) other perss in active concert or garpation with Defendant or

with anyone described in (a).
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V.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGEDAND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined fnolating, directly or indirectly, Section
13(b)(5) of the Exchange Act [15 U.S.&78m(b)(5)] and Re 13b2-1 thereunder
[17 C.F.R. 8240.13b2-1], by knowinglslisifying books, records and accounts
issuers are required to make and keepeasonable detail, that accurately and fairly
reflect the issuer’s transactions andodssitions of its assets, and by directly or
indirectly falsifying or causing to be faiied issuers’ books, records and accounts.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGE, AND DECREED that, as
provided in Federal Rule @ivil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also
binds the following who receive actualtroe of this Final Judgment by personal
service or otherwise: (a) Defendamafficers, agents, servants, employees, and
attorneys; and (b) other perss in active concert or garpation with Defendant or
with anyone described in (a).

V.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGEDAND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined fnaolating, directly or indirectly, Rule
13b2-2 [17 C.F.R§ 240.13b2-2], by

a. making or causing to lmeade materially falser misleading statements
to accountants in connection with; or

b. omitting to state, or causing anatiperson to omit to state, material
facts necessary in order to make statemmmatde, in light of the circumstances under
which such statements were made, noteading, to accountants in connection with:

I an audit, review or examitian of the financial statements
of the issuer required to be made; or
. the preparation or filing of document or report required to

be filed with the Commission.
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IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGE, AND DECREED that, as
provided in Federal Rule @ivil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also
binds the following who receive actualtroe of this Final Judgment by personal
service or otherwise: (a) Defendamifficers, agents, servants, employees, and
attorneys; and (b) other perss in active concert or garpation with Defendant or
with anyone described in (a).

VI.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGEDAND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined fnaolating, directly or indirectly, Rule
13a-14 [17 C.F.R. 8§ 240.13@{1 by falsely certifying that an issuer’'s annual and
guarterly reports fully comply with thegairements of the Exchange Act and fairly
present, in all material respects, the ficial condition and re#is of operations of
the company, when, ifact, the reports contain untrue statements of material fact ar
omit material information necessaryrt@ake the reports not misleading

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGE, AND DECREED that, as
provided in Federal Rule @ivil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also
binds the following who receive actualtroe of this Final Judgment by personal
service or otherwise: (a) Defendamafficers, agents, servants, employees, and
attorneys; and (b) other perss in active concert or ganpation with Defendant or
with anyone described in (a).

VII.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGEDMAND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoined fnolating, directly or indirectly, Section
304(a) of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002féing to reimburse an issuer for any
bonus or other incentive-based compensatmmhamy profits realized from the sale of
the issuer’s securities during the 12-mopéhiod following the first public issuance
or filing with the Commission of any finara document, for which an issuer is

required to prepare an accounting restat@ndue to the matadinoncompliance of
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the issuer, as a result of misconduathvany financial repding requirement under
the securities laws.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGE, AND DECREED that, as
provided in Federal Rule @ivil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also
binds the following who receive actualtroe of this Final Judgment by personal
service or otherwise: (a) Defendamtfficers, agents, servants, employees, and
attorneys; and (b) other perss in active concert or garpation with Defendant or
with anyone described in (a).

VIII.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGEDAND DECREED that Defendant
is permanently restrained and enjoinearfralirectly or indirectly, controlling any
person who violates Section 10(b) of thechange Act [15 &.C. § 78j(b)], and
Rule 10b-5 thereunder [17ER. 8§ 240.10b-5], Section 13(a) of the Exchange Act
[15 U.S.C. § 78t(a)], and Ras 12b-20, 13a-1 and 13a-ttiereunder [17 C.F.R. 88
240.12b-20, 240.13a-1 and 241Ba-13], unless Defendant ath good faith and does
not directly or indirectly induce thact or acts constituting the violation.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGE, AND DECREED that, as
provided in Federal Rule @ivil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also
binds the following who receive actualtioe of this Final Judgment by personal
service or otherwise: (a) Defendantflicers, agents, servants, employees, and
attorneys; and (b) other perss in active concert or ganpation with Defendant or
with anyone described in (a).

I X.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGEDAND DECREED that Defendant
Is permanently restrained and enjoirfiem aiding and abetting any violation of
Section 10(b) of the Exchge Act [15 U.S.C. 8§ 78j(b)hnd Rule 10b-5 thereunder
[17 C.F.R. § 240.10b-5], Section 13(a)tleé Exchange Act [15 U.S.C. § 78t(a)], and
Rules 12b-20, 13a-1 and 133-thereunder [17 C.F.R8 240.12b-20, 240.13a-1 and
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240.13a-13],Section 13(a) of the ExchaAge [15 U.S.C. § 78m(a)] by knowingly
or recklessly providing substantial assistatacan issuer’s violation of the aforesaid
provisions.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGE, AND DECREED that, as
provided in Federal Rule @ivil Procedure 65(d)(2), the foregoing paragraph also
binds the following who receive actualtioe of this Final Judgment by personal
service or otherwise: (a) Defendantfficers, agents, servants, employees, and
attorneys; and (b) other perss in active concert or ganpation with Defendant or
with anyone described in (a).

X.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGEDAND DECREED that, pursuant
to Section 21(d)(2) of the Exchange Atb[U.S.C. § 78u(d)(2)]ral/or Section 20(e)
of the Securities Act [15 U.S.C. 8§ 77t(e)]], Defendant is prohibited for one (1) year
following the date of entry of this Fihdudgment, from acting as an officer or
director of any issuer that has a classeasfurities registered pursuant to Section 12 0
the Exchange Act [15 U.S.C.&l] or that is required to file reports pursuant to
Section 15(d) of the Exchandget [15 U.S.C. 8 780(d)].

XI.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGEDMAND DECREED that Defendant
shall pay a civil penalty in the amount$£30,000.00 to the Securities and Exchange
Commission pursuant to Section 20(d) ad Securities Act [15 U.S.C. § 77t(d)] and
Section 21(d)(3) of the Exchange Act [WSS.C. § 78u(d)(3)]. Diendant shall make
this payment pursuant to the terms of plagment schedule setrtb in paragraph XIi
below after entry of this Final Judgment.

Defendant may transmit payment electoatly to the Commission, which will
provide detailed ACH transfer/Fedwire insttions upon requestPayment may also
be made directly from bank account via Pay.gov tlugh the SEC website at

http://www.sec.gov/about/offices/ofm.hinDefendant may ab pay by certified
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check, bank cashier’s check, or Unitedt8$ postal money order payable to the
Securities and Exchange Commission, \Wwlgball be delivered or mailed to

Enterprise Services Center

Accounts Receivable Branch

6500 South MacArthur Boulevard

Oklahoma City, OK 73169
and shall be accompanied by a letter idging the case title, civil action number,
and name of this Court; Defendant’s naasea defendant in this action; and
specifying that payment is made puant to this Final Judgment.

Defendant shall simultaneously transptibtocopies of evidence of payment
and case identifying information to the Comagion’s counsel in this action. By
making this payment, Defendant relinquisi#idegal and eqtable right, title, and
interest in such funds and no part of thieds shall be returnetd Defendant. The
Commission shall send the funds paid punst@ this Final Judgment to the United
States Treasury. Defendant shall paytfdgment interest on any delinquent
amounts pursuant to 28 USC § 1961.

XIT.

Defendant shall pay the civil penalty $£30,000.00 in four (4) installment
payments to the Commission accordingtte following schedule: (1) $50,000,
within fourteen (14) of days of entry tiis Final Judgment; (2) $27,000, within 90
days of the entry of Final Judgment; (3) $27,000, within 180 days of entry of the
Final Judgment, and (4) $26@Within 270 days of the entry of Final Judgment.

Payments shall be deemedduaan the date they arecetved by the Commission and

shall be applied first to post judgmentdarest, which accrues pursuant to 28 U.S.C. &

1961 on any unpaid amounts due after 14 dd@yise entry of Final Judgment. Prior
to making the final payment set forth herddefendant shall contact the staff of the

Commission for the amount due for the final payment.

]
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If Defendant fails to make ampayment by the date agreed and/or in the
amount agreed according to the scheduléosth above, all outstanding payments
under this Final Judgment, including pastigment interest, minus any payments
made, shall become due and@lble immediately at the disation of the staff of the
Commission without further application to the Court.

XI1I.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGEMAND DECREED that Defendant
shall reimburse BWI Liquidating Trust £00.00 pursuant to Section 304 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 15 U.S.C. 7243(#@hin fourteen (14) of days of entry
of this Final Judgment. Defendantyrteansmit payment electronically to BWI
Liquidating Trust, c/o Walker Truesd@loth & Associates, which will provide
detailed ACH transfer/Fedwire instruat®upon request. The payment shall be
accompanied by a letter identifying Thon@sTekulve, Jr. as a defendant in this
action; setting forth the title and civil action number of this actions and the name o
this Court; and specifying that paymenmade pursuant to this Final Judgment.
Defendant shall simultaneoudhansmit photocopies of sbh payment and letter to
the Commission’s counsel in this actioBy making thigpayment, Defendant
relinquishes all legal and eitable right, title, and interest in such funds, and no part
of the funds shall be returned to Defendant.

XIV.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJDGED, AND DECREED that
Defendant’s Consent is incorporated hereitn\the same force and effect as if fully
set forth herein, and that Badant shall comply with all of the undertakings and
agreements set forth therein.

XV.

ITISFURTHERORDERED ADJUDGED,AND DECREED that, solely for
purposes of exceptions to discharge sehfortSection 523 of the Bankruptcy Code,
11 U.S.C. 8523, the allegations in the ctairg are true anddmitted by Defendant,
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and further, any debt for disgorgement, prejudgment interest, civil penalty or other
amounts due by Defendant under this Finagiment or any other judgment, order,
consent order, decree or settlement agrent entered in connection with this
proceeding, is a debt for the violation byf®sdant of the federal securities laws or
any regulation or order issued under sueVslaas set forth in Section 523(a)(19) of
the Bankruptcy Code, 11 U.S.C. 8523(a)(19).

XVI.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGE, AND DECREED that this Court
shall retain jurisdiction of this matter ftre purposes of enforcing the terms of this
Judgment.

XVII.

There being no just reason for delay,quant to Rule 54(b) of the Federal

Rules of Civil Procedure, the Clerk isdered to enter this Judgment forthwith and

without further notice.

Dated: September 12, 2017
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